
Draft 
  

TOWN OF RED HOOK  
CONSERVATION ADVISORY COUNCIL 

 
Minutes of meeting 

April 13, 2011 
 

Members present:  Chairwoman Brenda Cagle, Zoie Riel, Laurie Husted, Susan Ellis, Dr. Jane 
Ferguson, Anne Rubin 
 
Guests:  Councilwoman Micki Strawinski, Sarah Imboden, Highway Superintendent Theresa Burke 
 
Chairwoman Brenda Cagle called the meeting to order at 7:10 P.M. 
 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 9, 2011 MEETING:  Brenda Cagle noted that under the heading 
Smart Energy Towns, the last three paragraphs, which include the composting proposal, should be 
put under a heading of Other Grants, as they were separate from the Smart Energy Towns proposal. 
Laurie Husted added that under the Amphibian Big Night report, she had about 142 students 
interested in helping.  The minutes were approved as amended, with a motion made by Jane 
Ferguson and seconded by Laurie Husted. 
 
TOWN HIGHWAY GARAGE PROPOSALS:  Brenda Cagle introduced Highway 
Superintendent Theresa Burke who attended to discuss the proposals in development for 
construction of a new highway garage, and what environmental questions the CAC might have.  
Micki Strawinski added that Superintendent Burke had been on the Town Board meeting agenda for 
April 12 and had presented current proposals. 
 
Superintendent Burke presented plans for a proposed new highway garage and described possible 
configurations on the Town Hall property.  She noted that the proposal includes siting the garage 
with bays having a southern orientation to increase energy efficiency.  The Highway Department has 
asked for radiant heating to be installed in the floor, with a small propane heating system for 
additional heating needs.  The system would be controlled by two zones between the offices and 
other areas.  The plan will add more windows for lighting; Superintendent Burke noted that the 
Department had lights replaced already under a Central Hudson energy efficiency program.  The 
building would be constructed with steel beams that could support solar panels if future funding 
would permit. 
 
Superintendent Burke addressed concerns of salt contamination of wells from the salt shed.  She 
noted that the salt is stored on an asphalt lined pad, and that will not be changed.  The garage design 
calls for a full-length floor drain to catch fluids or oil from the trucks and equipment stored there.  
There will be an added retention pond, which needs a permit from the Department of Environmental 
Conservation (DEC), and will be monitored and cleaned.  Superintendent Burke said that the garage 
does not have a wash bay; trucks are taken to the car wash.  She added that the Highway Department 
has changed to a bioclean parts cleaner and that anything done to the trucks is inside the garage.  
Laurie Husted asked about the ongoing pump-out costs for cleaning the catch drain tank. 
 



Anne Rubin expressed concerns with impacts of the project on the aquifer.  She noted that about two 
years ago, hydrogeologist Russell Urban-Mead sent a soils engineer to inspect the site and give 
recommendations.  Anne would like more information about the run-off – what kind and amounts.  
She asked if the project engineer is looking at low impact development (LID) techniques.  She noted 
that she is glad to see the environmental considerations that are being addressed.  Superintendent 
Burke replied that the project engineer, Crawford Associates, is well aware of the issues that are 
important to address.  She asked Anne who would be the best person to ask to look at impacts to the 
aquifer; Anne replied Russell Urban-Mead. 
 
Brenda Cagle asked what would happen with the old garage.  Superintendent Burke noted that they 
would have to construct the new garage first, to avoid interruption of service.  Then they will 
probably have to test the site of the old garage to determine what remediation might be needed.  She 
added that the disposition of the old garage is not included in the 1.5 to 1.8 million dollar proposal 
for a new garage.  
 
Zoie Riel asked about the impacts of the plan on the Recycling Center footprint.  Councilwoman 
Micki Strawinski noted that the DEC regulations regarding the purchase of Recycling Center 
property mean that DEC must be asked for approval of any changes to the Recycling Center.  There 
already has been a change as a result of the encroachment of the road connector construction.  Zoie 
suggested that Superintendent Burke needs to check on it. 
 
Anne Rubin asked if the proposed Highway garage plan could include as many planted areas as 
possible to minimize run-off calculations.  Highway Superintendent Burke asked what types of 
plantings Anne would recommend.  Anne said that she could provide a guide to suitable plantings.   
 
Brenda Cagle noted that she often sees grants offered for “green structures” through DEC or the 
GREENWAY.  Councilwoman Micki Strawinski suggested that perhaps there is a company that had 
an order for a structure that was not completed and would be available for a reduced price.  
Superintendent Burke said that she would investigate the possibility.  Susan Ellis asked if New York 
State Energy Research and Development Authority (NYSERDA) grants would make it feasible to 
install solar panels at the time of construction.  Micki noted that Supervisor Sue Crane had Energy 
Manager Anne Marie Hirschberger at the Town Board meeting to discuss such possibilities. 
 
The CAC discussed a summary of concerns, which were: 

1) Impact of the highway garage proposal on the Recycling Center property, which 
needs to be checked for compliance with DEC restrictions. 

2) Retention pond and Low Impact Development – Does the retention pond fit with 
the shape and size of the impervious surface. 

 
Councilwoman Micki Strawinski noted that the Town had approved a 1.5 million dollar bond 8 years 
ago, which is in effect for 10 years.  After that, the Town would have to restart the process.  
Highway Superintendent Burke said that the Department is working with a $45,000 grant to study 
shared services, and has a $400,000 grant for implementation.  The Department hopes to use 
Highway Department employees for much of the work.  Phil Seymour is willing to manage the 
construction and lend a bulldozer.  Zoie Riel asked when the project would break ground if all goes 
as planned; Superintendent Burke replied in August 2011. Anne Rubin said that while the proposed 
site of the new highway garage is not ideal, the plan would be much better than the existing 
situation.  Jane Ferguson suggested that the CAC needs to endorse the plan.  The CAC thanked 



Highway Superintendent Burke for explaining the highway garage proposal and answering questions 
and concerns of the CAC about environmental impacts. 
 
RUTH OJA SCHOLARSHIP:  Brenda Cagle reported that a majority of the CAC voted to 
recommend applicant Jennifer Piacente as recipient for the scholarship this year. 
 
EARTH DAY/ARBOR DAY:  Earth Day and Arbor Day activities will be held on Saturday, April 
30, 2011.  Brenda Cagle reported that there will be a pharmaceutical drop-off at the Red Hook Police 
Department in the Village Hall from 10 A.M. – 2 P.M. 
 
Zoie Riel and Sarah Imboden met to make plans for the event and discussed how to present 
recycling and zero waste information.  They said that economic considerations need to be stressed 
and they have 5 different posters.  They include contrasting “pay as you throw” with a single fee 
system, buying less and recycling more, and more instructions about what and how to recycle.  Zoie 
asked for suggestions for a great slogan.  Anne Rubin suggested “Are you throwing away a potential 
income stream?” 
 
Zoie Riel suggested implementing the idea of a Recycling Bank, where recyclers would receive 
coupons.  Sarah Imboden will research more information on the concept.  Zoie noted that feedback 
will be needed before April 30. 
 
ZERO WASTE AT EARTH DAY:  Zoie Riel discussed the Zero Waste concept and said that the 
challenge is to change to rules of solid waste disposal to reward sustainable practices.  She would 
like to have clear ideas on board for Earth Day activities on April 30.  Zoie reported that she 
attended a meeting in Rhinebeck, and learned that Rhinebeck has created a Zero Waste Task Force.  
She suggested that Red Hook should consider the same. 
 
Zoie noted that the last Hazardous Waste Collection Day at Red Hook had 400 people.  The County 
Resource Recovery Agency is not likely to plan one for Red Hook any time soon.  Red Hook could 
hold its own collection day if it can find funding for the approximate cost of $20,000 for disposal.  
The State would reimburse ½ of that cost.  Zoie added that education and communication are critical 
to addressing hazardous waste issues. 
 
10% CHALLENGE:  Laurie Husted reported that the 10% Challenge Committee had 10 people 
sign up for coupons for compost bins.  The Committee is raffling another 10 bins, and preorders are 
available at Mac’s Farm and Garden World (AGWAY), the Village Halls, and Red Hook Natural 
Foods.  Anne Rubin suggested that the Committee donate a compost bin to the Community 
Supported Garden Project. 
 
Laurie presented a draft flyer for plastic bag recycling.  CAC members made small suggestions and 
generally approved the flyer. 
 
SITE PLAN WALK FOR FELLER PROPERTY SUBDIVISION:  Anne Rubin joined the 
Planning Board on Friday, April 8, 2011 to walk the Feller property.  The proposed subdivision 
includes 12 units in a compact configuration with turnarounds.  Anne noted that the building lots are 
mostly on Hoosick soils, which have a good percolation rate.  However, Anne reported that there are 
considerable wetland and hydric soil areas, and property lines run through wetland buffers.   
 



The project developers want to do community septic systems. Anne reported that the developers 
hired consultant Michael Lewicki, who determined that there were no species of concern on the site.  
The Planning Board had further concerns, and hired Cary Arboretum biologist Michael Klemens. He 
reported concerns about the complexity of the habitats, including vernal pools, and suggested that 
there could be box turtles, spotted turtles and possibly Blandings turtles present.  The Planning 
Board will continue negotiation with the developer for changes in the configuration of building sites, 
and possible removal of one lot to allow a contiguous protected habitat. 
 
Michael Klemens said that deed restrictions would not be the solution to habitat protection; but 
conservation easements should be negotiated.  Anne Rubin asked Planning Consultant Michele 
Greig to send her report to Anne or Brenda Cagle. 
 
PLANNING BOARD MINUTES REVIEW:  Jane Ferguson will read and summarize the minutes 
for the May CAC meeting.  Susan Ellis will switch to August, as Anne Rubin did the site plan walk 
report for this meeting. 
 
ICLEI:  Brenda Cagle reported that the Town of Red Hook has been officially dropped from the 
ICLEI program, as it is not paying the membership fee.  Brenda also noted that Energy Manager 
Anne Marie Hirschberger had a conference call with Brenda, Denis Collet and Laurie Husted.  Anne 
Marie has access to an intern who can gather together all the information on public programs 
involved with climate change issues. 
 
Brenda also reported that she had a phone call from CONSERT, a North Carolina firm hired by 
Central Hudson to monitor electric usage.  From a list of 1700 or 1800 town residents, they need 200 
residents willing to be monitored.  They asked Brenda if the CAC would work with them. 
 
MEMBERSHIP:  Councilwoman Micki Strawinski confirmed that final reorganization 
appointments will be made in May. 
 
CLOSING:  The meeting was adjourned at 9:55 P.M. 
 
NEXT MEETING:  Wednesday, May 11, 2011 at 7 P.M. at the Town Hall 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Susan H. Ellis, Secretary 
 
 


